NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

ASSESSMENT SUB-COMMITTEE

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held at the Council
Chamber on Tuesday, 18 August 2009 at 3:00 pm.

D. Kennedy
Chief Executive

AGENDA

1. CONSIDERATION OF REPORT INTO COMPLAINTS AGAINST
COUNCILLOR WOODS BY MESSRS DICKIE AND WATTS




Appendices: 3 }fﬁr‘g /‘\genda1|tem

AGENDA STATUS: Public

Meeting of the Assessment Sub-Committee

18 August 2009
Report Title Complaints Against a Member of the Council
Date of Meeting: 18 August 2009
Directorate: Chief Executive
Ward(s) -
1. Summary
1.1 The Complainants allege that a Councillor failed or may have failed to comply with

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

the Authority’s Model Code of Conduct.
Recommendations

That the Sub-Committee considers whether the matter should be referred to the
Adjudication Panel for England for determination, or

That the matter be referred to a separate hearing of the Sub-Committee for
determination (on a date to be fixed) and pre-hearing procedures are commenced as
soon as possible.

The Sub-Committee considers whether an exemption applies in respect of Schedule
12 A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Decision on the Complaint

On Monday 9 March 2009 the Sub-Committee decided to direct the Monitoring Officer
to carry out an investigation of the complaints attached as Appendix 1.

The Reasons for the Decision:

3.2.1 The allegations, if proved, disclosed three breaches of the Code of Conduct by
the Member: it was conduct which could reasonably be regarded as bringing
the member’s office or authority into disrepute, contrary to paragraph 5; it fell
to be assessed as an attempt, contrary to clause 6(a), to use the position as a
member improperly to confer an advantage on the member; and it may have
breached clause 6(b)(i) as a failure to use the authority’s resources in
accordance with its reasonable requirements. In all the circumstances,




41

4.2

4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

including the fact that the complaint allegations were prominently in the public
domain and had elicited two complaints, the Sub-Committee was satisfied that
the allegations were serious and should be investigated.

Appointment

On 3 April 2009 the Monitoring Officer appointed an external investigator, to carry out
the investigation of the ethical standards complaints.

On 14 July 2009 the investigator delivered his report dated 13 July 2009 on his
investigation. The final version of his report and the appendices are attached at
Appendix 2 to this report. The report is exempted from publication pending
consideration of the exemption by the Sub-Committee at its meeting.

A copy of the investigation report was sent to the Member on 14 June 2009 and he
was given an opportunity to comment on the report’s content.

The Sub-Committee now has the task of considering this report and then making a
decision under the appropriate section of the Standards Committee (England)
Regulations 2008 (“the regulations”).

Report Background

Regulations 17 and 18 of the regulations concern the consideration of investigation
reports by Standards Committees and the hearing of the Standards Committee that
must take place. As one of the report’s conclusions is that there has been a breach
of the Code of Conduct, the Sub-Committee must, pursuant to Regulation 17 of the
regulations refer the matter for consideration at a separate hearing of the Standards
Committee. Pursuant to the regulations the hearing must take place within 3 months
of the final report dated 13 July 2009, ie on or before 12 October 2009 or as soon as
reasonably practicable thereafter.

As an alternative to a hearing the Sub-Committee could decide instead that the
matter should be referred to the Adjudication Panel for England for determination.

The Sub-Committee meeting must comply with regulation 17(2)(a) and (b) before
deciding to refer the matter to the Adjudication Panel (if they are minded to make that
decision). The regulations state that a Standards Committee may only refer the
matter to the Adjudication Panel for England for determination if (a) it has determined
that the action it could take against the Member would be insufficient were a finding
of failure to be made; and (b) the President or Deputy President of the Adjudication
Panel has agreed to accept the referral.

The Adjudication Panel have provided guidance on the circumstances in which it
would be likely to accept a referral. A copy of the guide is attached at Appendix 3. In
the Monitoring Officer’s view, the complaint if proved is not so serious as to merit an
Adjudication Panel referral. However, this is a matter for the Sub-Committee
meeting. If the Sub-Committee meeting concludes that this matter should be referred
to the Adjudication Panel for England, then the Monitoring Officer will contact the
President of the Adjudication Panel to ascertain whether they are prepared to accept
the referral.



6. Implications (including financial implications)
6.1 Resources and Risk

The investigation, and the hearing that the Sub-Committee must decide to appoint,
will continue to take up the time and attention of the Borough Solicitor and his staff.

6.2 Legal
The legal implications are stated in the body of this report.
6.3 Other Implications
None Specifically.
7. Background Papers
These are contained within the body of the report and its appendices, as attached to this
covering report.
Report Author and Title: Nikolas Jacob Solicitor/ Francis Fernandes Borough

Solicitor & Monitoring Officer

Telephone and Email: 01604 837735 ffernandes@northampton.gov.uk



(i T D RO L

/?ervice Improvements

Mr F Fernandes

Monitoring Officer
Northampton Borough Council
St Giles Square

Northampton

NN1 1DE

13 July 2009

Dear Mr Fernandes
Local Investigations in respect of Councillor Woods

Enclosed for your attention please find my final report together with the associated appendices,
I look forward to hearing from you in connection with the hearing date.

Yours sincerely

Phillip Mears




Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

Provisional Findings from Investigation carried out in respect of alleged
‘breaches of Northampton Borough Council’'s Code of Members’ Conduct

by Councillor Woods

1.0 Details of the allegation

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.0

3.0

31

On 9 January 2009 Northampton Borough Council (NBC) received a
complaint from a member of the public concerning Councillor Woods.
The complaint stated " It was reported in the Chronicle & Echo on 8
December that Councillor Woods parked his car in the Guildhall car
park for two months. He was clearly not on Council business for two
months, 24 hours a day and therefore he abused his position as a
Councillor to park whilst on Council business. He also avoided paying
Council parking charges and thereby caused a financial loss to the
Council. In so doing he brought the Council and its Councillors into
disrepute as evidenced by the complaint” . :

On 23 February 2009 NBC received a written complaint from another
member of the public concerning Councillor Woods. The following text
is taken directly from the complaint form completed by the
complainant . * Councillor Woods abandoned a car without a tax disc in
the basement car park of the Guildhall for a period of many weeks. The
use of the car park is restricted to members and officers using it for
official business only. Councillor Woods used it in effect to 'store’ a
vehicle - whether waiting for repairs or to be re-taxed for an
unacceptable period of time - embarrassing other elected members
and employees of NBC. It was an action that became public knowledge
and added to lowering the public esteem for the authority”.

The two complaints were considered by Northampton Borough
Council’s (NBC) Referral Sub-Committee on 9 March 2009 who decided
to refer the matter to the Monitoring Officer for investigation. The sub-
committee identified 3 potential breaches of the Code of Conduct -
relating to paragraphs 5, 6(a) and 6(b)(i).

List of documents considered during the course of this
investigation

A list of the documents used to inform this investigation and referred
to in this report is attached at the end of this report.

Interviews carried out during the course of this investigation

Councillor Woods, Mr Kennedy, Chief Executive of NBC and Ms Kimmet
who is part of the Council’s Facilities Management Service were
interviewed in person by the investigator on 7 May 2009. One of the
complainants provided the investigator with comments by email in
support of his complaint. A series of questions were put by email to
Ms Logue (who works in Facilities Management), Ms Kimmet and Mr
McGown, Meeting Services Manager. Summaries of the interviews and
comments received are set out in the attached appendices.

| D e



Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

4.0 Findings of fact

4.1

Northampton Borough Council’s Code of Members’ Conduct was
adopted by the Council on 1 September 2007. Paragraph 5 states
“You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be
regarded as bringing your office or authority into disrepute”. Paragraph
6(a) states “You must not use or attempt to use your position as a
member improperly to confer on or secure for yourself or any other
person an advantage or disadvantage”. Paragraph 6(b)(i) states “You
must when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of
the authority act in accordance with your authority’s reasonable
requirements”, These three parts of the Code apply where the member
is conducting the business of the authority or is acting in, claiming to
act in or giving the impression of acting in their official capacity.
Councillor Woods has been a member of NBC since May 2003. He has
been the Leader of the Council since May 2007. When interviewed
Councillor Woods recalled that he had probably received some training -
in the Code of Conduct following both elections and certainly recalled
receiving some training when the Code changed in 2007.

Timeline of events relevant to the matter which is the subject of this report

4.2

The timeline of events below has been constructed from the interview
summaries together with other information reviewed during the course
of this investigation. The information provided by interviewees is
discussed in more detail further on in the report.

Date Event
End of September | Councillor Woods parked his car in the
2008 Guildhall car park in his designated space.

The car was in need of repair prior to its next
MOT and when interviewed Councillor Waoods
explained that he needed somewhere off-
road to park the car until he was able to
afford to have the repairs carried out.

| End of September The road tax on the car expired
Around 3"  week | Mr Kennedy spoke to Councillor Woods about
October the situation concerning the car, Councillor

Woods explained that he would sort the
matter out once he had been paid his
backdated members allowance increase on
20 November,

L —

26 November Ms Kimmet asked Councillor Woods to
remove the car and pointed out that the road
tax had expired.

28 November An article appeared in the AUFONA page of

the of the Northampton Chronicle and Echo.
The article referred to a red Astra that had
| remained in the car park for the past 2




Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

4.3

4.4

months and also pointed out that the .road.
tax had expired.

Prior to 8 December
full Council meeting

Mr Kennedy spoke ta Councillor Woods again
about the situation concerning the car.
Councillor Woods again stated that he would
get the matter sorted out.

8 December full

Council meeting

Councillor Woods was presented with a
‘mock’ parking ticket by Councillor Malpas

9 December

Further article concerning the car appeared in
the Chronicle.

11 December

Councillor Palethorpe wrote an email to Mr
Kennedy requesting that action be taken to
remove-the red Astra parked in the Guildhall. |
Mr Kennedy was on leave when the email
was sent and therefore the mafter was
referred to Ms Procter the Director of Finance
& Support.

Between Christmas
and New Year

Mr Kennedy spoke to Councillor Woods again
about the situation concerning the car.
Councillor Woods assured him that the
remaoval of the car was imminent,

12 January 2009

Councillor Palethorpe wrote a critical memo
to Councillor Woods (copied to Mr Kennedy)
in connection with the situation concerning
the car.

13 January

Mr Kennedy wrote to Councillor Palethorpe in
response to his email of 11 December and
Councillor Palethorpe’s memo to Councillor
Woods. He explained that Councillor Woods
had informed him that he believed that he
had made the required SORN declaration

(see para 4.3 for details) and that
arrangements were in hand to remove the
car.

15 January

The car was removed from the car park

23 January

The Council received an email from Heart
radio station which claimed that the DVLA
had confirmed to them that as at 20 January
no SORN had been declared in respect of
Councillor Woods car.

End of January

Councillor Woods attended the DVLA office in
Northampton and made a SORN declaration

In_what circumstances

is_a vehicle owner required to complete a

Statutory Off Road Notification (SORN)?

According to the DVLA website a SORN is required where:

The vehicle is being kept off the road due to repair or MOT failure, or

it isn’t being used

3 Puse



1;' inal report in respect of Councillor Woods

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

If the owner is not renewing the road tax and it is being kept off the
road

The SORN should be applied for as soon as the vehicle is taken off the
road. A SORN can be made from the fifth day of the month in which
the current tax disc is due to expire. If it is not possible to renew the
tax disc because the vehicle does not have a valid MOT the owner has
14 days from the date of the expiry of the tax disc to make a SORN.
Under current legislation the DVLA has the power to impose a fine on
the vehicle owner if they fail to make a SORN within the time allowed,

What the Council’s Constitution has to say on the use of Councn
resources by Members - o i citms

Part 5 of the Council’s constitution is headed “Codes and Protocols”,
Section 4.5 of part 5 concerns the use of Council resources by
members. The section states ™ The only basis on which the Council can
lawfully provide support services to Members (eg computers, or other
IT software, stationery, typing, printing, photocopying, transport etc)
is to assist them in the effective and efficient discharge of their duties
and role as Members of the Council. Such support services must
therefore only be used for Council business., The same should not be
used for or in connection with party political or campaigning activities
or for private purposes.” The relevant extract from the Constitution

is set out in appendix 3.

In response to the investigator's questions Mr McGown, Meeting
Services Manager explained that Councillors receive a copy of the
Constitution when they are elected and additionally if it is

subsequently revised.

Use of the Guildhall car park

The car park is open Monday to Friday from 6.30am until the last
meeting of the evening ends. It is also open Saturday from 8.30 am to

3.00pm.

Officers and Councillors can use the car park when on Council
business. Members of the public can also use the car park if spaces
are available when visiting the Council offices Prior to 5.00pm on
weekdays Councillors are required to book a space through the
Guildhall Office. After 5.00pm Councillors can use the car park without

booking.

By virtue of his position as Leader of the Council, Councillor Woods
has a designated space in the car park for his specific use when on
Council business. Because he has a designated spot he is not required
to book a space in advance.

Summary_ from interview carried out with Ms Kimmet (appendices 4)

415 .



Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

Ms Kimmet manages the Guildhall car park. She explained that around
26 November she had spoken to Councillor Woods and asked him to
remove his car from the car park. Councillor Woods told her that he
would remove the car although Ms Kimmet did not ask for and
Councillor Woods did not provide a date by which the car would be

moved.

Ms Kimmet also pointed out to Councillor Woods that his road tax was
out of date that he needed to make a SORN. Councillor Woods replied
that he already knew about this.

Ms Kimmet was asked by the investigator whether Councillors are
provided with any guidance concerning the use of the car park. She
explained that last year as part of the induction process for new
Councillors she had carried out a briefing on the car park’s use. She
also provided them with a printed sheet setting out the key
information . Ms Kimmet explained that Councillor Woods was unlikely
to have received a copy of the printed sheet because he was not a
new Councillor. Ms Kimmet explained to the investigator that last year
was the first time she had carried out the briefing although in her view
all Councillors would have been aware that they were only supposed

to use the car park for Council business.
Summary from interview conducted with Mr Kennedy {appendix 5

Mr Kennedy explained that around the third week of October he had
become aware that Councillor Woods car had been in the car park for
a number of weeks and therefore he spoke to Councillor Woods about
the situation. Councillor Woods explained that the car was in a state of
disrepair and needed work to be carried out in order to pass the MOT,
Councillor Woods explained that he would be able to afford to have
the work carried out once he received his backdated Members
allowance increase on 20 November.

Mr Kennedy spoke to Councillor Woods again about the situation
concerning his car prior to the full Council meeting of 8 December and
Councillor Woods commented that he was going to get the matter
sorted out. -

Mr Kennedy went on holiday immediately after the 8 December
meeting and did not return until just before the Christmas break. On
11 December Councillor Palethorpe addressed an email to Mr Kennedy
requesting that action be taken to remove the “red Astra illegally
parked in the car park”. The email was forwarded to Ms Procter, the
Director of Finance & Support who was covering in Mr Kennedy's
absence. A copy of the email is set out in appendix 6.

Mr Kennedy recalled that at some point over the Christmas and New
Year period he had again spoken to Councillor Woods concerning his
car and was assured that its removal was imminent.



Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

4.21 Mr Kennedy had assumed that while he had been on holiday,

4.22

4,23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

Councillor Palethorpe’s email of 11 December had been replied to on
his behalf. It was only after Mr Kennedy had received a copy of a
memo dated 12 January that Councillor Palethorpe had addressed to
Councillor Woods that he realised that a response had not been sent
to Councillor Palethorpe. The memo of 12 January was highly critical
of Councillor Woods for leaving his car untaxed in the car park and for
not apparently having made a SORN. A copy of the mema is set out in
appendix 7.

Following receipt of the memo Mr Kennedy subsequently spoke to
Councillor Woods who explained that he had twice tried to make the
SORN declaration via the internet and had alsc tried phoning the DVLA
but had experienced some difficulty getting through. Councillor Woods
told Mr Kennedy that he believed that he had now successfully made a
SORN declaration.

Mr Kennedy wrote to Councillor Palethorpe on 13 January (appendix
8) explaining that he had discussed the situation with the member
concerned and that the member had informed him that they had
experienced some difficulty in making a SORN declaration however
they believed that they had now done so. Mr Kennedy explained that
he would not be taking steps to have the car removed because the
Guildhall was a private car park and therefore there was no legal
requirement for the car to be taxed. Secondly the car was in its
allocated space and was not parked illegally. Mr Kennedy had shown a
draft of his letter to Councillor Woods prior to signing and sending it.
Councillor Woods did not question any of the content of the letter.

Mr Kennedy discovered that the car did not in fact have a SORN
following an email dated 23 January sent to the Council by Heart radio
station(appendix 9) . Mr Kennedy subsequently spoke to Councillor
Woods who explained that he had received a fine for not having a
SORN and that he would be making a SORN declaration at the DVLA
office in Northampton. Councillor Woods also agreed to write to
Councillor Palethorpe explaining the position.

Summary of interview with Councillor Woods (Appendix 10)

Councillor Woods explained that he has a space in the car park
allocated to him on a full time basis by virtue of his position as Leader
which meant that he could use the car park during the working day.

Councillor Woods was asked by the investigator whether it was his
understanding that he was entitled to use the car park regardless of
whether he was on council business.

Councillor Woods explained that each year councillors are provided
with a parking pass which enables them to use public car parks when
on Council business. He interpreted this to mean that if a councillor
was going to see a constituent or was doing something related to their

6]Pase



Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

4.29

role as councillor then it would be legitimate to park in one of the
public car parks using the pass provided by the Council. In contrast it
would not be legitimate use of the parking pass if a councillor was
using one of the public car parks when engaged in a shopping
expedition.

Councillor Woods expressed the view that the situation concerning the
Guildhall car park was different because it was not a public car park,
he accepted however that there is a cross-relationship with the
circumstances in which a public car park could be legitimately used by
a Councillor. By way of illustration he explained that if he had left the
car in the Guildhall car park in order to go on a three month holrday

~ that would not have been legitimate.

4.30

4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

Councillor Woods was asked by the investigator whether he
recognised that his designated space was for him to use when directly
or indirectly undertaking Council business. Councillor Woods replied

"Yes [ think so”.

He explained that during the time the car was in the car park he had
been undertaking a great deal of Council business which explained
why he had not got round to getting the repairs to the car sorted out,
Attending to the car had not been his highest priority. He had been in
the Council offices or engaged on Council business virtually everyday
during the time the car had been in the car park. He went on to
explain that having reviewed his diary from early October until
Christmas 2008 there had been virtually no evening on which he had
not in some way been attending to some form of Council business or
was acting as a representative of the Council.

Councillor Woods confirmed that he had attended a number of non-
Council related events during the time that the car was in the car
park.

Councillor Woods accepted that he had been “pushing the boundaries”
and that it would be up to the Standards Committee to decide whether
he had pushed them too much. He explained that to have removed
the car would have taken time, effort and resources that at the time
were difficult for him to allocate. Councillor Woods considered that
leaving the car where it was had facilitated him in being able to carry
out his role because he had not had to take time away from his
numerous responsibilities in order to arrange for repairs.

Councillor Woods explained that he had parked the car in the car park
because the road tax was due to expire at the end of the month
(September). The car was going to need a number of repairs carried
out on it in order to pass the MOT. He explained that he lives in a
terraced house and does not have a private driveway or an alternative
off road location which he could have used to store the car.

7| Page



Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

4.35 His intention had been to park it in the car park for a short time

4.36

4,37

4.38

4.39

however he had not been in a position to afford to get it repaired
immediately. When first parked in the Guildhall he had informed the
Guildhall Keepers that he had to sort out the MOT and that it would be
there for 3 or 4 days.

Councillor Woods explained that he had been in a position to afford to
get the car repaired once he had received his backdated members
allowance increase on 20 November 2008. He had not attended to the
repair at that time because of the intensity of the issues he was
dealing with as Leader and also because by then the subject of his car
had become a political issue. He explained that at one Council meeting
Councillor Malpas had presented him with a mock parking ticket. -

Councillor Woods recalled that as time progressed and the situation
regarding the car had become a political issue he had had a number of
discussions with the Chief Executive. In essence the Chief Executive
had asked him to move the car and Councillor Woods had replied that
he would move it as soon as he was able to. Councillor Woods also
confirmed that Ms Kimmet had advised him to remove the car and had
pointed out that a SORN needed to be made.

On the question of the SORN, Councillor Woods commented that he
believed the road tax had expired at the end of September. He
recalled that he had first attempted to make a SORN on-line in early
October to the DVLA. Because he did not hear back from the DVLA he
had tried to check and found that the DVLA had not received his
notification. He believed that he had tried to make the SORN 2 or 3
times on-line but for reasons that he was unable to explain he could
not complete the registration. He then sent a paper declaration to the
DVLA in early December. Apparently this did not arrive at the DVLA’s
offices because in early January he received a fixed penalty notice for
failing to make a SORN. Councillor Woods explained that he had finally
completed a SORN by going to the DVLA’s offices in Northampton at
some point in early January. He had known about the existence of the
office but for some reason had not thought about it as an alternatwe
means of making a declaration.

On 31 January Councillor Woods replied by email to Councillor
Palethorpe’s memo of 12 January (appendix 11) . He confirmed that
he had taken the car off the road by placing it in his allocated space
because he did not expect it to pass its MQT. In October he had
posted a SORN to the DVLA. Some weeks after he realised that he had
not received any acknowledgement from the DVLA and therefore had
checked and found it had not been received. He then attempted to
make a SORN on-line but for reasons he could not explain found he
was unable to do so. He then sent a further SORN notice to the DVLA
before Christmas. Councillor Woods confirmed that he had told the
Chief Executive that he had sent a SORN notice but was experiencing
problems successfully registering this with the DVLA. Councillor Woods
explained that he had received a fixed penalty notice from the DVLA
for non-declaration of a SORN and accepted that it had been his

|frage



Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

4.40

4.41

4.42

4.43

4.44

4.45

4.46

4,47

4.48

responsibility to ensure that the SORN had been registered with the
‘DVLA , not simply to have tried.

In response to supplementary questions put to him by email by the
investigator Councillor Woods explained that at the end of January he
had visited the DVLA’s office in Northampton and had made a SORN
declaration. He recalled that when he had spoken to Mr Kennedy ( in
connection with the proposed response to Councillor Palethorpe’s
memo) he had not claimed that he had known for certain that his
earlier attempts to make a SORN declaration had been successful.

Councillor Woods was asked by the investigator whether he recalled
making an apclogy over the incident as stated in the 16 January
edition of the Chronicle (appendix 12c) .

Councillor Woods recalled saying something reasonably informally
along the lines that of course he was sorry that the car had remained
in the car park for a prolonged period of time and that he was sorry
for any embarrassment caused. He pointed out however that no one
else would have been entitled to use the space given that it was
specifically allocated for the Leader of the Council’s use.

Councillor Woods was asked by the investigator whether he
considered that he had actually done anything wrong.

Councillor Woods replied that he considered that he had made an
error of judgement in not getting the car repaired quickly and that this
led to some embarrassment that had been exploited by his opponents,
He did not consider that he had been misusing resources or had done
anything to seriously bring himself or the Council into disrepute.

Councillor Woods explained that he considered that both the press and
opposition members had shown a puerile interest in the situation
concerning his car.

When asked by the investigator whether he wanted to make any
further comments, Councillor Woods stated that he did not consider
that the complaints had been made by bona fide members of the
public. He felt they were politically motivated. He explained again that
while the car had been in the car park there had been very few
periods when he had not in some way been working for the Council.
He regretted the fact that the car had been there for so long because
it had caused considerable embarrassment. He did not believe that he
had done anything fundamentally wrong.

Newspaper coverage relating to the extended stay of Councillor Woods
car in the car park

During the course of this investigation the investigator was made
aware of three articles that appeared in the Northampton Chronicle
and Echo in connection with Councillor Woods car. These articles are
dated 28 November 2008, 9 December 2008 and 16 January 2009,

9B ge



Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

4.49
4.50

4.51

4.52

4.53

4.54

4.55

4.56

The latter article is headed “Leader has apologised for parked car
fiasco” and quoted Councillor Woods as saying * Opposition politicians
have had their fun with this. I am sorry for any offence caused to

taxpayers”.
Copies of the above articles are set out in appendices 12 a - ¢.

Comments received following the circulation of the draft report

Following the circulation of the draft report comments via e mail were
received from both the complainants and from Councillor Woods. The

key points below. The comments in full together with the investigators
__responses to the various parties are set out in appendices 13 & 14. e e e

One of the complainants was critical of the Council’s approach to the
handling of their complaint, They considered that the whole process
had taken far too long - 6 months from the time that they made their
complaint to when they received the draft report. Secondly they felt
that the Council had adopted a hostile and unhelpful attitude towards
them by appearing to ask them to prove the allegation. The
complainant also pointed to the fact that the Council appeared
unwilling to send them a copy of the Code of Conduct and instead told
the complainant to download it from the Council’'s website. The
complainant generally found the website not to be user-friendly and
recommended that the Council considered making the process of a
complaint on-line more accessible.

A series of e mails passed between the investigator and Councillor
Woods following the circulation of the draft report. The key points are
summarised below. As mentioned above, the correspondence in full is
set out in the appendices to this report.

The following points were contained within an email fom Councillor
Woods dated 24 June. Councillor Woods pointed out that he had
expressed the view during his interview with the investigator that if a
Councillor used one of the Council car parks when not on official
business then this would represent a technical breach of the Code
irrespective of the length of time involved.

In response the investigator commented that he had recalled
Councillor Woods making the above point. The following points were
not raised during the interview.

Councillor Woods commented in his email that it was well known (and
tolerated) that Councillors and staff use the Guildhall car park on
evenings and weekends when not on Council business. He also
commented that some Councillors use the Borough’s car parks when
on private business. He pointed out that Councillors are provided with
a specific notice which informs them that the car park permits are only
to be used on Council business however in six years he had never
known for officers to carry out any checks on whether Councillors
were using their permits appropriately.

10 Page



Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

4.57

4.58

4.59

4.60

4.61

4.62

4.63

4.64

He commented that if he was guilty of a breach of the Code then
anyone who had used the Guildhall or other car parks (when not on
official business) was equally guilty. He commented that the
Standards Committee should recommend that these loopholes should
be closed forthwith. He further commented that as leader of the
Council he was seen by the public as being on duty 24/7.

In response to the above points the investigator asked Councillor
Woods whether he would be willing to provide the names of
Councillors who he believed had not used their car parking facilities
appropriately. Councillor Woods response together with a number of
other points were contained in an email dated 29 June is summarised =~

below.

Councillor Woods stated that he did not have the names and times
that specific Councillors may or may not have parked in any particular
car park, he was not making complaints against individuals - rather
he was seeking to illustrate the complexities associated with the

subject.

He commented that it had been custom and practice over an extended
period of time for Councillors and senior staff to park in the Guildhall
car park on Saturdays in order to pop into town. This was regarded as
a ‘perk of the job’. If he was guilty of a misuse of Council resources by
leaving his car in the car park then the loophole should be closed in
order to be fair and consistent. '

Councillor Woods went on to comment that the judgement as to
whether he did or did not make improper use of Council resources was
not a black and white issue. In his view the reality was that it was a
judgement call based on drawing a line within a wide range of grey.

Action taken by the investigator in response to Councillor
Woods comments

Derek Simpson who oversees the Borough's car parks apart from the
Guildhall was asked by the investigator whether any checks were
carried out by officers to ensure that Councillors were not using their
Council permits when not on Council business. In response Mr
Simpson explained that it was almost impossible to monitor the
situation because there were not the resources available to do so. He
confirmed that no regular checks were carried out.

Ms Kimmet who manages the Guildhall car park was asked whether
any checks were carried out during weekdays, evenings or weekends
to prevent Councillors from parking at the Guildhall when not on
official business. She commented that checks were made, however
she and her staff had no control over when business was official or
not. If she had reason to believe that a Councillor was abusing the
situation she would talk to them.

1P s



Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

4.65

4.66

4.67

4.68

4.69

4.70

4.71

4,72

4.73

4.74

4.75

4.76

She confirmed that she had never had to ask a Councillor to remove
their car - apart from Councillor Woods. She also confirmed that she
was not aware of any Councillor having left their car in the Guildhall
for several days or weeks - apart from Councillor Woods.

Conclusion on the facts

Based on the information outlined above I have drawn the following
conclusions.

Councillor Woods is provided with a designated car parking space by
virtue of his position as Leader of the Council. The space is for his use
while engaged on Council business. ; 23

Councillor Woods parked his car continuously in his allocated space
within the Guildhall car park from the end of September 2008 until 15

January 2009,

Councillor Woods used the car park as an off-road facility until such
time as he was able to afford to have some repairs carried out which
were required before the car would be able to pass its MOT.

During the time that the car was in the car park the Chief Executive
raised the matter with Councillor Woods on at least three occasions as
did Ms Kimmet on one occasion.

Councillor Woods informed the Chief Executive that he would be in a
position to have the car repaired once he had received his backdated
members allowance increase on 20 November 2008. Councillor Woods
states that he did not attend to the repairs after 20 November
because of the intensity of the activities he was engaged in at the time
on behalf of the Council and because the situation surrounding the car

had become a political issue.
The road tax on the car expired at the end of September 2008.

On the subject of the SORN based on the information available to me [
am not in a position to question the genuineness of the efforts
Councillor Woods states that he made to declare one. It is apparent
however that whatever steps he did take were not successful by virtue
of the fact that he received a penalty notice.

At the time this report was written I have not been able to ascertain
whether Councillor Woods received the penalty notice for failing to
make a SORN before or after he had his conversation with Mr Kennedy
in response to Councillor Palethorpe’s email.

Due to a lack of evidence it has not been possible to conclude with any
certainty whether or not there is any validity to Councillors Woods
claim that other Councillors use the Guildhall and the Council’s other
car parks on a regular basis when not on official business.

12{Page



Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

5.0 Conclusion as to whether Councillor Woods has or has not

5.1

5

53

5.4

5.5

5.6

failed to comply with the Code of Conduct

As outlined earlier in this report paragraphs 5 and 6(a) and 6(b)(i)
apply where a member is Conducting the business of the authority or is
acting in, claiming to act in or is giving the impression of acting in their
official capacity.

In his capacity as Leader of the Council Councillor Woods has an
allocated space in the Guildhall car park which is a facility provided to
him by the Council in order to- assist him in undertaking his
responsibilities on behalf of the Council. It follows therefore that when
making use of his space it would be reasonable to assume that
Councillor Woods would either be acting in, claiming to act in or giving
the impression of acting in his official capacity. On these grounds I
have concluded that the official capacity ‘test’ has been met in this

case.

I will firstly consider whether it would be reasonable to conclude that
by leaving his car in his designated space throughout the time in
question Councillor Woods used or attempted to use his position
improperly to confer on or secure an advantage for himself. I will then
go on to consider whether it would be reasonable to conclude that
Councillor Woods failed to use the Council’s resources in accordance
with the Council’s reasonable requirements. Thirdly I will consider
whether by leaving the car in the car park and failing to make a SORN
declaration within the required period it would be reasonable to
conclude that Councillor Woods brought his office or authority into

disrepute.

Did Councillor Woods use or attempt to use his position improperly to
confer on or secure an advantage for himself?

When coming to or conclusion on this aspect of the complaint I have
considered a number of factors. Firstly I considered the basis on which
the Council provides Councillor Woods with a designated space.
Secondly I reflected on his stated reason for leaving the car in the car
park in the first place and whether by using his space in the way that
he did, it can reasonably be said to have been to his advantage. I then
considered whether the use he made of the space could reasonably be
said to represent an improper use of his position. Finally I took account
of the explanations put forward by Councillor Woods for why the car
remained there throughout the period in question and the other points
that he raised in his defence.

As has been discussed at length earlier in this report Councillor Woods
is provided with a designated space by virtue of his official position as
Leader of the Council. It would in my view be reasonable to conclude
that the space is provided to assist him in commuting to and from the

13.1Ra g2
g



Final report tn respect of Councillor Woods

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5:13

Council offices in recognition of the fact that he is likely to need to visit
the offices on a more frequent basis than most Councillors.

When interviewed Councillor Woods stated he recognised that his
designated space was for him to use when directly or indirectly on
Council business. It would in my view be reasonable to assume
therefore that he would have been aware that he was not entitled to
use the space when not directly or indirectly engaged on Council
business.

Can it reasonably be said that there was a distinct advantage to be
gained by Councillor Woods in using his car park space in the way that
he did? In my view it is apparent that there was a clear advantage to
be gained in that he needed somewhere off-road to park the car and
he did not have an alternative facility readily available,

Would it be reasonable to conclude that Councillor Woods used his
position improperly by parking his car in his designated space?
Councillor Woods has clearly stated that he used his designated space

- as an off-road facility to park his car. In my view he used the space in

a way that the Council would not have approved of and for his own
personal advantage . I have therefore concluded that he did make
improper use of his official position.

When interviewed and through a subsequent exchange of emails with
the investigator following the circulation of the draft report Councillor
Woods put forward a number of points in support of his position.

Firstly he stated that for virtually all the time that the car had been in
the car park he had directly or indirectly been engaged on Council
business. Secondly he claimed that leaving the car there had helped
him to carry out his Council duties because he had not had to take
time away from his Council duties in order to attend to the repairs.
Thirdly he claimed that he had not caused a disadvantage to anyone
else because even if the car had not been there no one else would
have been entitled to use the space. Fourthly he claimed that if he was
guilty of misusing the Council’s car parking facilities then so were a
number of other Councillors because it was custom and practice for
Councillors to use the Guildhall and other car parks when not on official

business.
I will address each point in turn.

On the first point, I have no doubt that Councillor Woods did spend a
significant amount of time during the period that the car was stored in
the car park engaged on Council business. No doubt this goes some
way to explain why the car remained there for so long. I do not believe
it credible however to suggest that that he was on official business
throughout the period and indeed Councillor Woods confirmed that
there were periods when he was not engaged in Council business. The
fact remains that the primary reason he used the space during the
period in question was because he required an off-road facility, I

1417 asc



Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

&:19

5.20

therefore con5|der the amount of time he spent on Councn business

" represents little by way of justification.

On the second point I am willing to accept that not attending to getting
the car sorted out meant that Councillor Woods had more time to
devote to Council business, however this does not in my view
represent a reasonable excuse for taking advantage of his position to
use the car park as an off-road facility for such a protracted period of

time.

I regard the third point put forward by Councillor Woods as irrelevant.
The issue under consideration here is not whether his actions led to
others experiencing a disadvantage but whether he used or attempted
to use his position improperly to secure an advantage for himself.

On the final point Councillor Woods explained that a number of
Councillors use the Guildhall and other car parks when not on official
business. He went so far as to suggest that Councillors regard making
use of the car parks when not on Council business as a ‘perk of the
job’. Councillor Woods suggested that if he was guilty of misusing the
car park then so were they.

As has been explained earlier in this report I have not been able to
come to a conclusion concerning whether there was widespread misuse
of the car parking facilities by Councillors as claimed by Councillor
Woods. Even if there were some substance to his claim, it does not in
my view remove the responsibility he had to comply with the Code of
Conduct and the relevant parts of the Council’s constitution.

In conclusion based on the information available to me I consider it
reasonable to conclude that Councillor Woods used his designated
space as an off-road facility for in excess of 3 months until such time
as he could find the time and money required to attend to the
necessary repairs to his car. Making use of his space in that way had a
distinct advantage for Councillor Woods because he did not have an
alternative off-road facility. It is clear that he would not have been able
to use of the designated space in that way if he had not been acting in
an official capacity. My conclusion therefore is that Councillor Woods
did use his position improperly to confer an advantage for himself.

Would it be reasonable to conclude that Councillor Woods failed to use
the Council’s resources in accordance with its reasonable

requirements?

In May 2007 the Standards Board published guidance on the Code
for Councillors, The guidance covering the use of resources states
“ Where your authority provides you with resources (for example
telephone, computer, transport or support from Council employees)
you must only use these resources for carrying out your local authority
business and any activity which your local authority has authorised you

to use them for”.

]5[’];1 i



~ Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

5.21

5.22

5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

5.2

It is worth repeating here what section 4.5 of part 5 of the Council’s
Constitution has to say regarding the use of resources by Councillors.
“ The only basis on which the Council can lawfully provide support
services to Members (eg computers, or other IT software, stationery,
typing, printing, photocopying, transport etc) is to assist them in the
effective and efficient discharge of their duties and role as Members of
the Council. Such support services must therefore only be used for
Council business. The same should not be used for or in connection
with party political or campaigning activities or for private purposes.”

The first point to consider is whether Councillor Woods’ car parking
space can reasonably be regarded as a resource or support serwce
within the terms of the Council’s Constitution. :

The examples quoted in section 4.5 of part 5 on the Constitution are
illustrative and are not meant to represent an exhaustive list. Support
services by their very nature are designed to support a Councillor in
the undertaking of his or her official role. As Leader of the Council
Councillor Woods is provided with a designated space in order to
support him in undertaking his official role in the same way that he is
provided with office accommodation, IT facilities and staffing
resources. I have therefore concluded that it would be reasonable to
regard Councillor Woods designated space as a resource or support
service and therefore its use is governed by the requirements set out
in the Constitution.

Section 4.5 of part 5 of the Constitution clearly states that.support
services are only to be used for Council business and not for private

purposes.

In my view the use Councillor Woods made of his designated space
between late September and 15 January 2009 was incompatible with
the guidance laid down by the Council in its Constitution because he
was in effect using the space for private purposes. The space had been
made available to facilitate his commuting to and from the Council
offices, given that his car was out of action for in excess of 3 months it
is apparent that the space was not being used in the way that the
Council had intended. My conclusion therefore is that Councillor
Woods did fail to use his designated space in accordance with the
Council’s reasonable requirements.

Would it be reasonable to conclude that Councillor Woods has brought
his office or authority into disrepute?

Since the judgement of Justice Collins in the Ken Livingtone case
( Livingstone v Adjudication Panel for England 2006) it has been made
clear that in order come to a finding that this aspect of the Code has
been breached it would need to be reasonable to conclude that the
actions of the Councillor in question had led to the reputation of the
office of ‘Councillor” within the authority as a whole being adversely
affected.

1604




Final report in respect of Councillor Woods

5.28 Within this report I have been critical of Councillor Woods actions in

5.29

5.30

5.31

5.32

using the Guiidhall car park in the way that he did for in excess of 3
months. Councillor Woods himself accepts that he showed an error of
judgement in doing so. I am also critical of the fact that he failed to
ensure that he successfully registered a SORN within the timescale
required. Councillor Woods has accepted that he should have made

sure that he had a SORN in place.

A number of newspaper articles appeared in connection with the
incident and it is apparent that by his actions he provided his political
opponents with ammunition to use against him. Councillor Woods
explained to the investigator that the matter had caused him

considerable embarrassment.

In conclusion, it may well be the case that Councillor Woods own
reputation has suffered to some degree as a result of his actions. It
does not follow however that the reputation of all Councillors within the
authority has similarly been affected. I have found no evidence to
suggest that this is the case. My finding therefore is that Councillor
Woods did not bring his office or authority into disrepute.

Final conclusion

My conclusion therefore is that Councillor Woods failed to comply with
paragraphs 6{a) and 6(b)(i) but did not fail to comply with paragraph 5
of the Code of Conduct for members.

6.0 Recommendations

6.1  That the Council provides all Councillors with detailed guidance on the
use of the Guildhall Car Park, and that all Councillors are reminded of
the circumstances in which they are allowed to use their Council
passes when making use of other Council car parks.

6.2 That the Council introduces measures to ensure that Councillors are
only using the Guildhall and other Council car parks when engaged on
official business.

6.2 That the Council considers reviewing the process of by which residents
can make complaints on-line to ensure that it is made as accessible as
possible.

Phillip Mears

Investigating Officer |

17| Pape



AR

L diary colinmn wiriltien by ¢
hth Autfona .. . I you have
or 112 Aufona page, you can
aufona@northanisnews.co.uk

N TR L I A i R B L oy M L S SR i T L

B The
off-centre
Astra in the
Gulldhall
car park

CAN anyone shed light on the
blood red Vauxhall Astra that has
been badly parked in the Guild-
hall's underground car park
{where borough councillors park)
since September?

We only ask as the vehicle’s tax
disc appears to have run out.

Has it broken down? Is it

unlikely to pass its MOT and that's
why it's been left there, somewhat
brazenly, for the past two months?
Still at the Guildhall, what a bril-
liant idea to stage the budget meet-

ing on December 22.

Red hot!

BINNERS, watch out. As
well as having retro shoes
named after him, your

next general election,
Clyde Loakes, has just

:50 most influential peo-

ple in local government

by the Local Government
Chronicle. Clyde is 38 and
the youngest Labour coun-
il leader in the country;
although there aren't that many
these days. ..

il \ Ot middle way

Presumably, ERGO members
will be toasting each other with

mulled wine afterwards, safe in the

knowledge that, by the time the

media gets to publicise all the good

news, more good news and - who

knows - even the odd setback, most
council tax-payers will have under-

standably shuffled off to tackle the
annual rituals of roasting a goose

or setting the video for the Queen's

Speech.
A caseof a good day for burying
good news (obviously).

Norman service

AMID the financial gloom is one
real success story. County leader
Norman Hacker - who, as the Chron
Labour rival come the reported last week, collected a touch over
£60K for all his worthwhile work in local
gavernment: Strawberry Hall, Plod, the
been named one of the  LGA, etc - can now add £8,538 as a regional
board member with the East Midlands
Development Agency. For this, i
Norm needs to find itwo daysa
month out of his schedule. That’s °
' £350 a day, or £50 an hour.
Bravo, Norm - keep fight-
.ing the Northampton- l N

ghire corner! °

g = S SR

FRIDAY, MOVEMBER 28, 2008

FRIDAY. NOVEMEER 28, 2008

Chronic)

.-&ECHl

To reply to an adveq :

Simply call the number wi Cvery

: wilh the
_.npua he sis dglt box umber, Follow iy il
instructions and legya 9 mesiags, Erm rer 4
. Cige

to chack if thay Teply o you,

90905 546 27108

> J OHAC, sep
IF YOU'RElookinglo chatwith quys  50-70for o
on line, fght now call 0906 966 Weekends
8375 Ot TXT: DATE12910 8300 0905 545
BORED OR LONE d44n14
0305 2320899 Now - DIORCEL
BLONDE blue 4§ caring ©29190ing,
considerate, tactile, di:;:i;g. SneKs,_ma
happy  but looking for thai telafonship
special someane, 4g.5¢ 1] 2700 Box p
large framed guy. Tel No: ggs CACK sin:
546 2708 Box No: 349378 g3 M2 lor
DIVORCED mum, seeks loyal fo: Tel b
male, 50 plus, likes fiims talks gauNo: 34
nighls in for triendship, ﬁmaybé B‘.JBBLY h
mors, Tel No: 0905 545 279g |20 hazel
Box No: 344660 Sodon
CURVACEOUS ptite br 9-0%
brown ayas, Iovef; musprc.u ;:::S, yo: el
tall,  afiractive mala for YoutHFuL
relationship. Tel Mo: 0305 g5 0 . alb
2708 Box No: 347613 professionai
FEMALE seeks honast can for Inendshi
genuine male, 50-60's for LTR. 15 N0:_O%
Tei No: 0305 546 2708 Box N0:313224
No: 318510 Sy il
BUBBLY brunelis istie, s Mones
imaginative, greal 1o baem\::';ﬁ. R ar
:;)eves rr;E{l 'rnﬁnlform. could that 3333525"5
you? Tel No: ¢
BoxNo-3e76zD - 2" ATTRACTIY
STUNNING petite, mixe g
I'en::aie. 23, seeks kind, (l’ar':ﬁl? CoN, el
white male, 28-40 for rcwing' o Tek
lasting relationship. Tel Na: oD ]
0305 545 2708 Box No: GENTLEMAI
304567 & o bscon :
TALL slim fit f S (0
lovely tall mate ‘zn;ir:reseg;: ok coul
times and lots of TLC. Tef No: 2T, M€ Te
0905 545 2708 Box ND: 2708 Box No
i:_?r&z * 42YR old s
RACTIVE bla lrustworthy, k
40's, altectionate, ﬂgetie?“&::s' Siar gert. &
Cuddles, sesks intelligent 'ma|e and lun. Tel N
31855 for toving relationship, BoX No: 340!
Tel No: 0905 545 2708 Box LOVER of
ch.A 3|_?1q|975 music, anin
] FUL indepe literature, s
single female, ng lia: :g:g gent, 50 plus
solvent, passionate male, Tel fights togethe
No: 0905 545 2708 Box Mo: 9462708 Boy
347830 ATTRACTIVE
BLONDE widow, 70, smart, Sim., GSOH
:’.a"“’g- seeks gentleman fo; seeks genl,
n:sses, cuddles, meals out, Special perso
g aybe more, Tel No: 0905 546 546 2708 Box
S?Fl:f Box No: 248208 VAL @0, 5i «
mw’:NING tall sliim plonde, likes dancing
ot Ieyes WLTM king, caring feading, set
No_a Of greal fun logether, Tel male. Tel No:
wﬁg:ns 546 2708 Box No: Box No:3363
CLARE Sty : SLIM El\llracll
fall, et bu"dmd_[smcgrg_ seeks intellige
well educated iuTalz'nda‘s" o oonna
and No: 0905 546
2l No: 0305 546 255200 &
Viy s GENUINE fer
AClOus Cuddly, bubbly s loyal, kin

. loves Jife s
handsome m:?; Seeks tall yanaoeq, pierc

Atfve - 2 lo be :
LOV'.NG 2

busit,

Wizt

Mg 1







Y

L%

F-_.'

il

WL 4 *d
- oy g S B e
i FT:'- 3 _J - L -I."
a"'k‘"" L{-:’-t‘li'mﬂit..;jm i!}' ¥

A R L R o
gebdicl S sis ol T
. " = - .

b Ll 'F'\-. ::&.r
; F 8

g h-l?.-: L B T | I ! TSR L
5 34 - L il Ty | = ™
s it ¢y 4
i i e iy | e a {
L ] - il "'ﬂ ']
LIS [ i g
|‘ ’ L ml - .

L | P TR, - -
" il B i ol o o 4 T P ® gl - LS L [ 2

}#- sl lpmmi i i, b ie Jeba LS A s ] U i
!

T

b L e et

:‘,I, ] . .1_".

S e | e
PiF i e "

[T T2 ER T
[ L ST T

i+1 R e 4 Al

¥

- LT
-l!-é i W =t §i
2 P - ey proyiiiy S
i
L - . -
¥ B L T T
JENEE ML e Wy FE T
ey ¥ idwe |
‘-I.I" ‘-' i:.. — i n TEid by -
X i Ll .- . ? ik 4 BEE G el Ee . e
i 1 1 - ke T FadiiiE s & i a5 dil L
. i I ' " PRl i (e |
oo B LR 4 L
o . E WL § S ol ™ :
a | Wl Ll W e ¥
. (- I TTH [
- = = deyw  ayeilhw g SR By g - T L [ e peap——"— KL - 5 :
- ¥ S
LT
! 8 ¥
M L e — i
| Lk = oy fuin &

-\.-_i-ln-_
£ FRRINE L
IR, [
Yigad i i i
At Sl ¥ LU
i

AaITa | ey
= ama v i s
fal L e e @
| LT Ly #tm
{ubnli’ g e

| B s BB sl

Iﬂl'llﬁ.tu.ll‘q. ]
et Bl N N

PO WYLLF
“ i i
i (L Al

b BRG]

L ]
Hrem . -

LI I | T
| = i b e B e
il i--.,p'l-.-lr.._i-
BECHLE T s e

e
.—-—'-"'_":'—- '

CONUCHIOWE 290 OMUGL Of NUFSXEQ ASUICIG ROR

T

q |oAe fo bak S

e — R T ST

ay
| ﬁmhﬂ rEgT _lr--

L]

M=
%

# i e

[

i




Tribunals Service Atpensix 2

457 Adjudication Panel for England

Guidance on the circumstances in which the
Adjudication Panel would consider accepting a reference
from a Standards Committee under Regulation 17 of the

Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008.

1. The Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008 include provision (Regulation 17
(1) (c)) for a Standards Committee to make a finding that a matter should be referred for
determination by the Adjudication Panel. Before such a referral can be made the
Standards Committee need themselves to have determined that the action which the
Standards Committee could itself take (if there were a finding that there had been a
failure to follow the provisions of the Code) would be insufficient. The reference itself can
be made only if the President or Deputy President has agreed to accept it.

2. The possibility of such a reference arises only after a monitoring officer has produced a
report for the Standards Committee. The President of the Adjudication Panel is willing to
indicate, prior to the consideration of that report by the Standards Committee, whether he
would agree to accept such a referral. Such agreement would not commit the Standards
Committee to making such a referral but would avoid the Standards Committee seeking to
refer matters which were not suitable.

3. The maximum sanction which a Standards Committee can impose is a suspension for a
period of six months. Thus the primary question to determine as to whether a reference
can be accepted is whether, if a breach of the Code had occurred, a more severe sanction
than six months suspension would be appropriate,

4. It would be rare for the Adjudication Panel’s Case Tribunals to impose a suspension for
longer than six months, not least because the effect of such a lengthy suspension might
be seen as leading to constituents being left without effective representation at a time
when the suspended elected member is not able to fulfil his responsibilities.

5. Less rarely, however, a Case Tribunal will disqualify an elected member. Whereas a
suspension will apply only to the particular council whose Code of Conduct has not been
followed, a disqualification will preclude the member concerned from being appointed to
any relevant authority. Thus it would be an appropriate sanction for a member whose
conduct leads to the view that the member concerned is unfit to hold such public office.

6. The Adjudication Panel has already published guidance (Guidance on decisions available
to a Case Tribunal) as to when disqualification is likely to be an appropriate sanction. The
following is an extract from that guidance:

14.1 The Respondent has deliberately sought personal gain (for either him or herself
or some other person) at the public expense by exploiting his or her membership
of the body subject to the Code of Conduct.

14.2 The Respondent has deliberately sought to misuse his or her position in order to
disadvantage some other person.

14.3 The Respondent has deliberately failed to abide by the Code of Conduct, for
example as a protest against the legislative scheme of which the Code forms part.

Guidance on Regulation 17(1)(c) SUlE Published: November 2008



Members of local authorities are expected to uphold the law. Where the Code has
been deliberately breached to reflect the Respondent’s opposition lo the
principles underlying the legislation, the Case Tribunal is likely to think of a
disqualification of one year.

14.4 There have been repeated breaches of the Code of Conduct by the Respondent.

14.5 The Respondent has misused power or public assets for political gain.

4.6 The Respondent has misused council property.

14.7 The Respondent has committed a criminal offence punishable by a sentence of
three months or more imprisonment.

15 There may be other factors not listed above which also merit disqualification. Nor
will disqualification always be appropriate even if the listed factors are present.
17. Disqualification may be imposed as an alternative to suspension in order to avoid

an authority being inquorate or the electorate left without adequate
representation. Disqualification would allow by-elections to take place whereas
this would not be possible if the member concerned were suspended.

7. The President or Deputy President is likely to agree to accept references for matters which
are of a kind which would merit disqualification.

8. It is important to bear in mind that the decisions on whether to refer, and whether to
accept such a referral, are being made on the hypothetical basis of a finding that there
has been a breach of the Code of Conduct. In taking a decision as to whether to accept a
proposed reference, the President or Deputy President would not usually seek to form a
view as to how likely it is that such a finding would be made. Nor would they usually seek
to form a view on whether there are particular mitigating circumstances which would
cause a Case Tribunal not to disqualify a member even though such disqualification might
usually be seen as appropriate for a breach of the kind concerned. Those are decisions

which should properly be left to the Case Tribunal hearing the case.
9. A reference to the Adjudication Panel should include:

* 3 brief description of the conduct which has given rise to the complaint
= details of;
-~ when the member was elected.
- when the member made a declaration to abide by the Code.
- relevant training the member has received.
— the member’s committee membership or Executive responsibilities; and
- a note of any appointments to other bodies on behalf of the council and of any
membership of other relevant authorities.
»  a copy of the relevant Code of Conduct should be appended.
= the reference should indicate what paragraphs of the Code have been under
consideration.
= the investigating officer’s report to the Standards Committee should be appended. The
Standards Board for England has provided a template for such a report in its
publication *Local Standards Framework - Guide for Authorities.
= Alist giving the names, addresses and contact details of:
- the respondent.
- complainant.
- monitoring officer.
- investigating officer.
- Standards Committee correspendent.
- any legal representatives.

Guidance on Regulation 17(1)(c) =2 Published: November 2008



	Agenda
	1 CONSIDERATION OF REPORT INTO COMPLAINTS AGAINST COUNCILLOR WOODS BY MESSRS DICKIE AND WATTS
	PMears rpt


